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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hans Energy Company Limited is a leading operator in provision of
terminal and storage facilities and services for liquid petrochemical
products in south China. As used in this report, the terms of Hans,
Hans Energy, we and the Company may refer to Hans Energy
Company Limited or any one or more of its consolidated subsidiaries
("The Group”).

Company Profile

The Group is a leading midstream player in providing integrated
facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services
in south China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and gases products,
offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms. The Group owns and operates three major facilities, namely
Panyu Petrochemical Terminal (“XHIT"”), Panyu Solid Chemical
Warehouse and Logistic Centre (“Solid Warehousing Centre”), and
Dongzhou Petrochemical Terminal (“DZIT").

Liquid Product Terminals

XHIT is situated in Xiao Hu Island, Nansha, Panyu district,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province. The Terminal was built with
five jetties of birthing capacity ranging from 500 to 30,000 dwt. The
tank farm has a site area of 212,000 square metres and is installed
with 86 tanks of a total storage capacity of 330,000 cubic metres,
out of which 240,000 cubic metres are specialized for gasoline,
diesel and similar petroleum products commonly available in trading
and consumption markets. The rest 90,000 cubic metres tanks are
built for petrochemical products.

DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
country, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province. The Terminal
was built with twelve jetties of birthing capacity ranging from
500 to 100,000 dwt. The tank farm has a site area of 516,000
square metres and is installed with 96 tanks of a total storage
capacity of 260,000 cubic metres, out of which 180,000 cubic
metres are specialized for gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum
products commonly available in trading and consumption markets.
Storage tanks with capacity of 80,000 cubic metres were built for
petrochemical products.

Business Model

The two liquid product terminals provide customers with storage
and terminal services. However, customers use them for different
functions with regards to oil products and petrochemical products:
the terminals are distribution hubs for refined oil products while
customers use them mainly for storage of petrochemicals.
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EEENWR DM

The oil customers of the Group are distributors and traders of
refined oils in Guangdong province. To cope with their product
distribution requirements, they prefer to employ an owner jetty
terminal with integrated facilities instead of queuing up in public
ports, with prime location to cover highly dense sales outlets, i.e.
petrol stations. With their volume and frequency of flows of goods,
users pick those terminals which can handle large scale and high
speed refined oil operations. Furthermore, the terminals must be
fully licensed to cater multi products such as gasoline and diesel.

Strategic Locations

The two liquid product terminals of the Group are located in the
centre of the Pearl River Delta. As Guangdong is the pioneer in
economic development of China, it takes up about 10% of energy
consumption of the country. The refining capacity in the province
accounts for 20% of the national capacity. The two terminals situate
in the centre of the economic circle of the province. Within a radius
of 150 kilometers from Panyu and Dongguan, the circle covers over
80% GDP of the Guangdong, more than 80% of the provincial
population, around 80% energy consumption and over 80% petrol
stations in the province. The location edge attracts customers to
engage with the two terminals for their distribution of refined oils.

Apart from oil products customers, there are customers who have
manufacturing plants in the Pearl River Delta. In their business
cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their dangerous,
poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled facilities
with proper licences in accordance with governmental regulations
for safety and environment reasons. The customers may store their
hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
in our storage facilities. Our two terminals employ experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
features storage hardware. The Group persistently maintain high
standards in safety and environment protection. Both terminals in
Panyu and Dongguan are fully and properly licensed to handle wide
range of dangerous and hazardous goods. They provide convenience
to customers to move their cargoes in and out of the terminals
during their production cycle.

Revenues

The terminals earn storage income by leasing their tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size engaged. Apart from this,
they collect handling charges when providing services in moving
cargoes in and out from the terminals for customers, either by water
in the jetties or by road from the loading stations. Furthermore,
the terminals provide ancillary services such as tank cleaning, waste
treatment and blending to customers and earn respective fees for
the services rendered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Key Performance Indicators FERRER

With regards to the business model, the lease-out rates and cargo  FEFERMES @ HEXRNEES AIHE
throughput are the major key performance indicators of the ®WEFEBRIRIKIZ - HHERAS @ HE WA
terminals. Higher lease-out rate should return with higher leasing [EliAIA - EEBEEANZEREEELIES
income. More cargoes flows mean more works the terminals have  #&X » EIERERGWAINE S

done thus more handling service income.

The lease-out rates and cargo throughput of the last two years are as  @EMFENAEELEESHOT ¢
follows:

XHIT pzIT
PRELE RNEILE

Operational statistics

Liquid product terminal and (L ERBELUK

transshipment services EHhRRE
Number of vessels visited hERFEH
— foreign —5t 252 215 +17.2 127 127 +0.0
- domestic -t 762 408 +86.8 389 352 +10.5
Number of trucks served to pick U &Mz EEEA
up cargoes 37,224 26,730 +39.3 38,722 45,425 -14.8
Number of drums filled EREE 51,944 44,945 +15.6 1,574 725 +117.1
Transshipment volume DN )
(metric ton)
- olls — = - - - 3282 -100.0
- petrochemicals atld= 248,678 194,931 +27.6 20,769 4,407 +371.3
Terminal throughput ERAMTE ()
(metric ton) 2,789,000 1,728,000 +61.4 2,581,000 2,617,000 -14
- port jetty throughput —EEALE 2,068,000 1,219,000 +69.6 1,599,000 1,521,000 +5.1
- loading station throughput ~ —E£ELFHE 721,000 509,000 #417 982,000 1,096,000 -104
Storage services IR
Leaseout rate - oil and chemicals HHAZE—@R K
products a1 62.7% 44.9% +17.8 81.0% 85.5% 4.5
% points % points
BAE BAE
Solid chemical warehousing BRIt ERAERE
services
Carqoes received (metric ton) W& & (2) 57,090 74,144 -230 NATER NATER  NATER
Cargoes issued (metric ton) BEES(NME) 58,925 73,628 =200 N/ATEA NATER  NATER
Floor area leased out (m?) BRHEERRE
(FA¥) 21,800 27,000 -193  N/ARER NANER  NATER
Leaseout rate Hiax 66.2% 83.6% -174  N/ATER NATER  NATER
% points
BOH

7 ERERARAT —TNEER
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Liquid Product Terminal Business

XHIT

The major operational indices achieved significant growth at XHIT
during 2016. Port jetty throughput and loading station throughput
increased by 69.6% and 41.7% respectively. In line with the
growth of throughput volume, the numbers of trucks serviced to
pick up cargoes and drums filled increased accordingly by 39.3%
and 15.6%. Besides, the transshipment volume for petrochemicals
increased by 27.6% on a year on year basis. During the year, the
Company has revamped all fuel oil tanks into light oil tanks to adapt
to the market transformation. In this connection, there were new
clients introduced to utilize our light oil storage tanks, while the
existing clients continued to keep their storage volume growth.
We noticed some improvements for light oil market situation in
2016. Resulting from the Company’s efforts as well as market
environment, the average utilization of the oil tanks reached to 49%
in 2016 compared with 26% in 2015. While the average utilization
rate of chemical tanks kept as high as 96% in 2016 compared with
97% in 2015, the total average leaseout rate for both categories
was 62.7%, 17.8 percentage points higher than that in the prior
year.

DZIT

The oil and petrochemical market in 2016 remained challenging in
DZIT. During the year, although the yearly average leaseout rate of
tank farm was approximately 81% in 2016 compared with 86%
in 2015, the port jetty throughput and number of domestic vessels
visited during the year increased by 5.1% and 10.5% respectively on
a year on year basis. The uncertain of oil blending market situation in
2016 that resulted the decrease in demand of facilities for customers
who engaged in trading business with blending services required.
The Group continuously tried its best to tap into market potentials
and to expand its oil and chemical storage volume.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

With the downturn of solid chemical markets, the cargoes received
and issued decreased by 23% and 20% respectively as compared to
last year, and some existing customers did not renew the contracts
upon the expiry as their manufacturing and selling activities
dropped. As such, the average floor areas leased out reduced by
19.3% on a year on year basis. The leaseout rate was approximately
66.2% in 2016, 17.4 percentage points lower than that in 2015.
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OPERATION REVIEW

Operating Financials

The Group's reportable segments represent XHIT and DZIT. The
breakdown of revenues of XHIT and DZIT are as follows:

XHIT
PRELE
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-RE
HK$'000 HK$000
TAR TAT
Storage and transshipment R REGIA
income 95,798 771 80,830
Port income BABA 3,684 3.0 2,865
Solid chemical warehousing Bl ZEm
income BEMA 24,749 199 26623
XHIT

The revenue from the provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment services for liquid products in XHIT was about
HK$99.5 million during the year, representing an increase of
18.9% compared with the last year. During the year, storage
income increased to HK$70.4 million from HK$59.1 million in
2015, representing an increase of 19.1% on a year on year basis,
attributable to the 17.8 percentage points of improvement in
leaseout rate, which was in line with the higher utilization of storage
tanks and increase in a big margin in the terminal throughput,
although unit storage rate decreased due to keen competitions.

The revenue generated from Solid Warehousing Centre was about
HK$24.7 million during the year, representing a slight decrease of
7.0% compared with the last year. During the year, the average
floor area leased out decreased to 66.2% compared to 83.6% of
the last year. Fortunately, the average unit rate increased by 25.6%
due to product mix effect that narrowed down the reduction of
revenue generated from Solid Warehousing Centre during the year.

DZIT

The revenue from the provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment facilities for the liquid products in DZIT decreased
to HK$98.1 million during the year, representing a decrease of
13.1% compared with the last year. The storage income decreased
to HK$77.2 million from HK$90.4 million in 2015, representing a
decrease of 14.6% as compared with last year, which was mainly
attributable to the lower utilization of storage tanks and the
depreciation of RMB during the year.
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OUTLOOK

According to the predictions of reputable organizations, the Chinese
economy in 2017 will be comparable to that in 2016. As such, the
petrochemical industry in China will maintain a stable and moderate
growth. With regard to the trend of international crude oil prices in
2016, prices of oil and bulk petrochemical products were stable in
general with modest fluctuations. Such position set up a favorable
trading environment for bulk petrochemical products. As the largest
consumption market of oil products in China, the Pearl River Delta
is an active region in oil product trading and provides increasing
growth opportunities for our storage and transportation business.

Business Prospects

The Group intends to develop diversified business in 2017, including
but not limited to refined oil retail business in Mainland China
and LNG/refined oil/crude oil trading business in the international
market, to enhance the overall efficiency of the Group. At the same
time, to complement future business development of the Group and
for general working capital purpose, the Group will actively consider
various financing methods, including but not limited to rights
issue, issuance of new shares, issuance of bonds and borrowings.
Our priority is to strengthen the Group’s capital and improve our
financial position without increasing finance costs, thereby providing
strong support to future development. The Group will also continue
to identify suitable prospects and potential business opportunities
50 as to expand the income stream of the Group and strive for long-
term return for the shareholders. We are confident that the Group
will capitalize on the chances and overcome future challenges.

Liquid Product Terminal Storage Business

As at the end of 2016, two petrochemical terminals of the Group
had reached a historic high in their occupancy rate and are expected
to maintain a relatively high rate throughout 2017. In particular,
XHIT completed a renovation to revamp its fuel oil tanks into light
oil tanks. As a result, capacity of light oil tanks available for lease in
2017 will exceed the average last year by approximately 50,000 tons
to generate additional benefits for the Group. In 2017, DZIT will
continue to strengthen and negotiate for land reserve for the project
proposal of LNG/LPG tank construction. The Group has introduced
new partners with a view to boosting project progress. Once
implemented, the project will not only increase the storage income
of DZIT significantly, but also enhance the utilization efficiency and
income of existing terminals by a large margin.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

After a few years of operation, this business has settled down
and will continue to offer quality service to attract multi-national
corporate customers in 2017, with an aim of raising reputation,
expanding market share and increasing income.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue A

Revenue less direct costs and WAFIBR BN AR
operating expenses P = g3

Loss before interest and tax (“LBIT") &8 R IEATEE

(fLeiTl)

Loss attributable to equity PiN/NT Y Y ey o =]
shareholders of the Company

Earnings before interest, tax, RAE - BiE -
depreciation and amortisation HrEE RS R R
(“EBITDA") ([EBITDA])

Gross margin ESAIES

Net loss margin REER

Basis loss per share (HK cents) SRR EAREE GBI

Diluted loss per share (HK cents) FRESEEEB)
During the year, the Group's revenue decreased to HK$222.3
million from HK$223.2 million in 2015 that was attributable to
the exchange effect on translation of its revenue in relation to
the depreciation of Renminbi in 2016. Excluding the exchange
effect, the Group's revenue actually increased by HK$12.7 million,
representing an increase of 6.1% on a year on year basis, indicated
that the Group’s financial performances improved during the year.
LBIT continuously improved during the year. The improvements were
mainly driven by continuous improvements in leaseout rate and the
port jetty throughput. In this connection, the gross margin increased
by 5.4 percentage points and net loss margin decreased by 9.2
percentage points. The loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company reduced from HK$94.5 million in last year to HK$75.6
million during the year. During the year, EBITDA decreased to
HK$93.6 million from HK$98.8 million in 2015. It was attributable
to the increase of direct costs and operating expenses. The basic and
diluted loss per share for the year reduced to 2.03 Hong Kong cents
from 2.53 Hong Kong cents in 2015.
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g JE)
2016 2015 Changes
—E-XFE —T-—AfF 21t
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FTHET AT %
222,347 223,203 -0.4
41,865 29,993 +39.6
(16,118) (26,875) -40.0
(75,611) (94,469) -20.0
93,615 98,767 -5.2
18.8% 13.4% +5.4
% points
EFar
(35.7%) (44.9%) -9.2
% points
B
(2.03) (2.53) -19.8
(2.03) (2.53) -19.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Gearing

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$22.2 million (2015:
HK$52.7 million). Most of the funds were held in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi yuan (“RMB"”) and US dollar.

With the Convertible Bonds redeemed during the year, the Group's
current ratio was improved to 1.02 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
0.85). However, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities
to total assets) as at 31 December 2016 was 100.5% (2015:
94.3%). The higher ratio indicated the higher degree of leverage
of the Group. The Group will actively consider various financing
methods to improve our existing financial position and reduce the
degree of leverage of the Group.

Financial Resources
The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is
sufficient for the daily requirements for current operations. Due
attention will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the
latest developments of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use
of financial resources.

Finance Costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$980 million as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$1,077 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the finance cost charged to profit or loss
was approximately HK$55.5 million (2015: HK$70.7 million).

Convertible Bonds

During the year, the Company has fully redeemed principal amounts
of HK$50,000,000 of Series A Convertible Bonds. There were no
outstanding convertible bonds as at 31 December 2016. Details
of Convertible Bonds are set out in note 16(d) to the financial
statements.

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for
the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was 25% (2015: 25%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchanges Rate and Related Hedge
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings incurred
by the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are mainly denominated in
RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management
is of the opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks is not significant, and hedging by means of derivative
instruments is considered unnecessary.

As the exchange rate of RMB depreciated during the year, the Group
incurred an exchange loss of HK$12.5 million (2015: HK$17.20
million) on translation of financial statements of its PRC subsidiaries.

Charge on Group Assets
The Group has provided the Lender with certain of the Group's fixed
assets as collaterals for the banking facilities granted.

Capital Commitment

At 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and storage
facilities amounted to HK$17 million (2015: HK$18 million).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development and
acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to approximately
HK$131 million (2015: HK$140 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

Final Dividend
The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAESRTE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 57, joined the Company as Chairman in 2002.
He has many years of experience in China business particularly in
the provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals,
properties investments and developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 56, joined the Company as business
development manager in 2012 and was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer in July 2016. Mr. Yang
graduated from Beijing Normal University with a degree in
Economics. He also holds a Master’s degree in Project Management
from University of Management and Technology. Mr. Yang held
various senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China Petroleum
& Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general manager in
China Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and deputy chairman
and executive director in Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, the
securities of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He also has extensive experience in
international trade of petroleum and chemical commodities.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 49, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and
Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited ("GDPC"), Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd (“GD (Panyu)”) and Rz RMEE AL A
BEREAF ("EIMBEEE"). She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to that,
she had worked in various government departments and large
State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong
Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc.
She has more than 25 years of experience in financial management.
Ms. Liu graduated from Sun Yat-sen University in 1989 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor
qualification certificate of speciality and technology issued by the
Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBEAESHE

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 51, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating
Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of
engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in petrochemical
industry. He has expertise in petrochemical specialized technology
and is familiar with financial accounting policy and system of the
PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical
project management. He had served China Petrochemical
Corporation and held various key positions such as the chief financial
officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of the Hong Kong branch.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 60, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2002. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held
a number of positions with companies including Sino Land Company
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is
now an executive director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited,
the chief financial officer of Guangdong Holdings Limited and the
executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited. Besides,
he is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Investment Limited and China South City Holdings Limited, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 45, joined the Company
as Independent Non-Executive Director in 2005. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is
now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose, aged 52, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2013. She is also a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Miss Cheung graduated from York University, Canada
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Mass Communication and
Psychology. She further continued her education in finance at
Harvard University, Massachusetts, USA. Miss Cheung has over
25 years of extensive experience in mining resources, oil and
gas, telecommunications, broadcasting, multimedia, consumer
electronics and financial institutions. She has held executive positions
in listed companies including EPI (Holdings) Limited, Skyworth
Digital Holdings Limited, Cable & Wireless HKT Limited, Beenz and
Satellite Television Asian Region, STAR TV. Miss Cheung expertise
is in business investment, corporate finance, capital markets,
marketing and sales. Miss Cheung is now the Managing Director
of the Maryville Group Limited with businesses in mining resources,
broadcasting and principal investment.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 48, is a director and a general manger of B i
B[, He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of oil and
petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree of corporate
management. He is now fully responsible for the management of
the infrastructure and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 40, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). He graduated from E&RAHER and
joined GD (Panyu) in 1997. Mr. Huang has solid knowledge and
many years of experience in technology, construction project and
operating management of oil and petrochemicals storage.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 43, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master's degree in
Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He joined
GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience in trading
and marketing in the business of storage for oil and petrochemical
products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 45, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang
Institute of Commerce and majored in oil storage and transportation
operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of
experience in business operation and import and export customs of
cargoes.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Cui Ming, aged 60, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the deputy general
manager of sales department of F/H{LEE /A F]. He was engaged
in the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has extensive
experience in the sales and marketing management of petroleum
products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 49, is the deputy financial controller of GD
(Panyu) and a director and a deputy financial controller of ZME
BX. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified
Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants and has professional accountant qualification
in PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 41, joined the Company in 2008
and has been appointed as Company Secretary since 24 February
2017. Ms. Lam graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Lam
has over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing, financial
management and corporate governance matters. Prior to joining
the Company, she worked for accounting and auditing at several
reputable international accounting firms and a listed company.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of
its business in compliance with the principles and code provisions
(" Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Board is of the view that
throughout the year, the Company has complied with the CG Code
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1 (from 1 January
2016 to 12 July 2016), A.4.1 and E.1.2 and which deviations are
explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies
and plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while
the day-today operations of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised eight members,
including five executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. David An (Chairman and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 13 July 2016)
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
(resigned on 24 February 2017)
Ms. Liu Zhijun
Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committe)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") with at least one INED possessing appropriate professional
gualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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INEDs

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all INEDs are independent.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of
the INEDs except for Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose does not have a
specific term of appointment.

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 31
May 2013, subject to, inter alia, retirement from office by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Company’s article of association, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s general meeting and any directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
year, directors attended seminars and training sessions arranged
by various professional institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant
reading materials including the updates on the business, operations,
corporate governance, legal and regulatory matters have been
provided to all directors for their reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2016.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

EER2BEENHESERR  UER
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AERSREBMER CHEER - AR
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L2 G RIBIRE - 1Lsh - BFER
¥ BE CEER EERREFREE
RNZERMEEMTE MR ESREMY - U
HRESE LA -

ERRR}
PR B R AR
BE-T—AF+-A=+—RILEER

BITOREEEEH -

WHE-F—AE+-A=+—AILF
B BREZERESFE  RREEET - FH
SEGNBEZZEEERNEALE (ER
FHRFEBEMEFBHAR) S0
™

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRLE BETEERE

Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors S e REEZE FHEES ERZEE RRBEEAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. David An HEEE
(Chairman of the Board) (EE2TE) 3/4 N/A NER 1" N/A TNEH 0N
Mr. Yang Dong RS et
(Chief Executive Officer) (TB#EH)
(appointed on 13 July 2016) (R=ZF—7v
+A+=AEZET) N N/A i B N/A i N/A RiE A N/A NE
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas EEdLEE
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=—F—+14F
ZAZTASHF) 4/4 N/A T N/A i N/A TN F 1/1
Ms. Liu Zhijun AEEnT 4/4 N/A TEF N/A B N/A T4 F 11
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 3/4 N/A NiE A N/A NER N/A TNEH 0/1
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung FRUEE 4/4 22 171 22 1/1
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony PRIR(E £ 4/4 22 171 22 11
Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose S\ NR 4/4 212 n 212 11
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of executive directors
during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection. During the year, the Company Secretary has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in 2013.
A summary of this Policy, together with the measureable objectives
set for implementing this Policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how. All Board appointments will be based on
merits, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

22 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

AAegég‘\

BRERBEFSERIN  FRAZRITERT
EETHSZENTRBYIFNITESRSE

P
1T °

ERERRTE
ExgflertRINERETH X
RERES - ENHEMBEFEEHENEE
BEE - REFELAEAEA -

BENEFEXMHALMBER  TEK
AEER  RORBEEEERXEERE
ERBIOMN_RBEEESE  UBERESF
AR R R B R RN - WER
FEHAMBERE EFERTEENER
Z - A ERPEEERRITHAR

NRANERBENBRTEETeRNEERE
BRLNBTRRFLFTEHME - GFC
BER-REAESERGERRZAERMH
ARERERN - NREER - MERAA
HEZNFEM - RAFE - ARWED
TR R/ NRERARREEEET -

BROEFEER - EAFREBMRK
EENGBRZEARS  BHAEFESLL
ANBFREFE@ZMMEERLEE - AR
AZAEBERAAT AR EESEMR
HAEREXRETABBRALHEFEAN
B RHWERERE - TS ARHE
& OEENBEA ©

EEEREZSTILEER
EEgN_T=FRNESEKEZTT
EBER(THE]) - BROBERSNITZ
BEMBENAERR  AREREE
I

ESEHESTLBERABE
ARREREEETEXNEHAKSLZE
THEBEFEKEZ T - BFRENR
RIER - Fie - K58 XERHEEES -
EXRME  REMAE - EFEMERME
BARARES BRE - YHEZEEBANERS
NEBGRHYEMNEEERE S TS
BE NMEEE -



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board annually in the Corporate Governance Report and monitor
the implementation of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors.
Two of them are women. Three of them are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether
considered in terms of gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

With effect from 13 July 2016, Mr. Yang Dong has been appointed
as an Executive Director and the CEO of the Company. Mr. David
An has ceased to be the CEO with effect from 13 July 2016 and will
remain as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company.
The Board considers that the change of the CEO is principally
necessitated by an increase in the scale of the Group’s operations,
and the resultant separation of duties of the Chairman and the CEO
will enable a more timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group’s development.

Effective from the said change, the Company complies with the
Code Provision A.2.1, the positions of the Chairman and CEO
are segregated and are held by Mr. David An and Mr. Yang
Dong respectively. These positions have clearly defined separate
responsibilities. Mr. David An will focus on the overall strategic
planning and business development of the Group, whereas Mr. Yang
Dong will be responsible for the overall management, administrative
functions and day-to-day business operations of the Group.
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The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the websites of the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEX") and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee
All the three INEDs are the members of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee convened two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2016 to (i) ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the
requirements of the business of the Company; (ii) to review and
recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for re-election
at the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting; and (iii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members and make
recommendations to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three INEDs are the members of
the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman
of the committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman
and/or the CEO of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive directors and senior executives during the year ended
31 December 2016.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three INEDs (including two
INEDs who possess the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Li
Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors.
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() To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group's human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 to (i) review audited annual financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and unaudited interim financial
results for the half-year ended 30 June 2016; (i) to review financial
reporting, internal control and compliance procedures; and (iii)
to review the scope of work and make recommendations on the
appointment of the auditors.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

All the directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 52 to 60.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2016 was disclosed on page 95.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company, and reviewing
its effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Board has engaged an independent
professional firm to perform the risk management and internal
control review of the Group. The Board and the Audit Committee
have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and system of internal controls on all major operations and
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is designed to provide reasonable assurance, thereby minimizing
risks and allowing the Group’s business objectives to be achieved
optimally. The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system was operating
effectively and adequately during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted
on the websites of HKEX and the Company immediately after the
relevant shareholders’ meetings.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
that the Company ceases to have such a principal place of business,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the procedures posted on the Company’s
website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all
Board committees (or their delegates) and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available at the general meetings
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the directors were unable
to attend the last annual general meeting held on 24 May 2016
due to business engagement. They will use their best endeavours to
attend all future shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect of
good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory
regime. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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Directors’ Report

ESHE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance are set out in the section of the
Management Discussion and Analysis from page 4 to 13 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 61.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment
of bank loan of the Group, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil). However, the Board of Directors will determine dividend
distribution policies once the Group has secured stable income from
the operations in coming years.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in note
21 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$157 million (2015: HK$165 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements of property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 13 July 2016)

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

The following executive director resigned after the end of financial year.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
(resigned on 24 February 2017)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company'’s articles of association, Mr.
Zhang Lei and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Yang Dong shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yang Dong, as executive director and chief executive officer, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 13 July 2016, subject to, inter alia,
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose, as independent non-executive director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 31 May 2013, subject to,
inter alia, retirement from office by rotation at least once every three
years and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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The term of office of each of the independent non-executive
directors ("INEDs") is the period up to his retirement as required by
the Company'’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of
the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
directors of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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EHRNEERARFEBERZMABHRER
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Approximate percentage to
the issued share capital of

Number of shares the Company
BARBERITREZ
RGEE BRBESE

Long Short Long Short

Name of director Capacity Positions positions Positions positions

- HE Ba KR #aE KR

Mr. David An Beneficiary of a trust 2,548,203,980 Nil £ 68.27% Nil £
AREE ERXHEA (Note i)

Beneficial owner BB A 218,390,000 Nil 4z 5.85% Nil 4=
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Note: The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise
Investments Ltd (“Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Ltd (“Vand Petro-Chemical”). Both
companies are wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd.
("Julius Baer”) which is the trustee of a trust and Mr. David An is one
of the eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed
to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors of the Company and their associates had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations which had to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share option scheme in note 20 and unsecured
convertible bond in note 16(d) to the financial statements, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and the code provisions (“Code Provision”) as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company regularly reviews
its corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue
to meet the requirements of the CG Code. Throughout the year of
2016, the Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1 (from 1 January 2016 to 12
July 2016), A.4.1 and E.1.2. For details, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 18 to 30.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of shareholder

RIZEA
Long
Positions
39y
2,766,593,980
2,548,203,980
2,338,430,000
370,000,000
209,773,980

Number of shares

BR#EH

Mr. David An Eif# 5t 4 (Note KfzE 1)
Julius Baer (Note Ff{z¥ 1)

Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note Pff3T 1)
Dubai World Corporation (Note Fff#F 2)
Extreme Wise (Note Pz 1)
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Notes:

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
David An is one the eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
David An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr.
David An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the
Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-owned
by Dubai World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end or the year are set out below:

Convertible Bonds

During the year, the Company has fully redeemed the principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000 of Series A Convertible Bonds. There
was no outstanding convertible bonds as at 31 December 2016.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”). The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees
and attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The
scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of
such scheme and expires on 27 December 2022.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company (the “directors”) may at their discretion grant options to
any eligible participant including any employee, director, consultant,
advisor, agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint venture
partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or
services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may
be determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe for
the shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. The maximum number
of shares in respect to which options may be granted under the
scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of issued share capital of the Company or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
shareholders of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the directors. The exercise price is determined by the
directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of the grant of the options and the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options.
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As at the reporting date, the maximum number of shares in respect
to which options may be granted under the scheme is 373,263,800
shares being 10% of the issued share capital of the company. No
share option was granted to or exercised by any of the directors and
senior management during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil) and no share option was outstanding under the scheme as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers comprised approximately 17.6% of the
Group's total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer were approximately 5.0% of the Group’s total
turnover. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers comprised approximately 38.3% of the Group’s
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier were approximately 13.5% of the Group’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or
any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 470 employees (2015: 475), 460 (2015: 460) of which
worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget
which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group's employees to contribute their best efforts and to make
maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance with the
relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement,
medical, workman compensation and unemployment insurance as
well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the PRC. With
these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2016, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by XHIT, DZIT and Solid Chemical
Warehouse are hazardous, safety and environment protection
measures and equipment are regarded as the most vital and
critical importance to the success of the Group. The Group is
committed to the long term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. As a responsible corporation, to
the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Group
has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection during the year ended 31 December 2016.

For the financial risk management, please refer to the note 22 to the
financial statements from page 120 to 126.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the directors of
the Company, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is pleased to present the first
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“Report”) to provide
an overview of our commitment in achieving environmental, social
and governance goals through our sustainability pillars and provide
information on the policies and practices implemented.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the rules
governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.

This Report summarizes the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate social responsibility in 2016, covering its core operation
— provision of terminal and storage facilities and services for liquid
petrochemical products in South China.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@hansenergy.com.hk.

INTRODUCTION

The Group is a leading midstream player in providing integrated
facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services
in South China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and gases products,
offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms. To maintain a competitive edge, it is crucial that the Company
stays healthy and fit for the future. Our long-term success depends
on our efforts in managing the environmental and social risks.
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The Company stores energy and chemical products that are
important in people’s daily life, yet can endanger their health and
the environment if stored or handled inappropriately. As a service
provider, we do not determine what type of products are in use. Our
role and responsibility is to provide safe, efficient and clean chemical
storage and handling services. The Company abides by existing rules
and regulations as a minimum and adopt best practices whenever
possible. The Company also aims to achieve sustainable development
for our business by maximizing operational safety, by minimizing
our environmental footprint, by training and developing our people
as well as by sharing best practices, and by both encouraging and
maintaining an open dialog with our stakeholders as a responsible
member of the communities in which we operate.

The Company strives for excellence to make the right choices to
serve the long-term interests of all our stakeholders, from customers,
business partners and shareholders, to employees, local communities
and society at large.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has a dialogue with its stakeholders, including employees,
consumers, distributors, investors, suppliers and the community,
through utilizing different channels. Therefore, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to further formulate the
strategy of sustainable development.

Stakeholders Issues of concern
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group’s objectives on environmental protection are to reduce
emission of air pollutants, wastewater and hazardous wastes.
In pursuing these objectives, the Company has established and
implemented corresponding policies and procedures, including but
not limit to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”, “Waste
Management System” and “Wastewater Management System”.
The Group is in strict compliance with Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC and other relevant laws and regulations. The Group had
no material non-compliance regarding environmental issues in 2016.
Besides, the Group has obtained the certification of ISO 14000
(Environmental Management System).

A1. EMISSIONS

Air Pollutant Emission

The Group’s emission complies with “Emission limits of Air pollutants
(DB44/27-2001)" and “Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk
Gasoline Terminal (GB 20950-2007)". As most of the products
stored are highly volatile, key measures to mitigate the leakage of
the volatile chemicals are implemented as follows:

o External floating roof tanks' are used to store the gasoline,
diesel and other volatile chemical products.

o Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapor generated in the tank is
collected and treated with activated carbon.

. To reduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC) emission,
oil-gas condensation recovery devices are installed to achieve a
recycling rate of 98%.

o All the volatile organic compounds (e.g. pentane, acetone)
are stored in specific containers and sealed properly to avoid
leakage.

! External floating roof tanks (FTE &M EE) is a storage tank commonly
used to store large quantities of petroleum products. It eliminates
breathing losses and greatly reduces the evaporative loss of the stored
liquid.

2 Nitrogen blanketing (REF &) is widely used in many industries

to prevent fires, explosion, or degradation of products during their
production, storage, and transport.
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To reduce the emission of sulfur oxides, low-sulfur diesel (National V
standard) are used for boiler.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emission

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use of
resources” of this Report.

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated is handled with a comprehensive procedure to
mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a strict
classification system for different types of wastes. Each type of
waste has specific storage location and collection procedures. There
is a precaution implemented for the leakage of waste to prevent
pollution.

Hazardous wastes are handled according to the latest policies of
“National Hazardous Waste Inventory”. These wastes are separately
stored and handled with ledger for record. The Group engages
qualified recycling companies to perform waste disposal and
treatment so as to minimize the impact on the nature.

Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied to
all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of wastewater.
Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two separate systems to
prevent pollution to groundwater.

The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology ((Er 12 T KRB ERT) to
develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats wastewater with
microorganisms. The system is simple and the cost of maintenance
and operation is low. Therefore, it is widely admired and accepted
by government departments and peers.
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Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of boilers,
pumps and compressors etc. Appropriate acoustic insulation is
applied to those machineries. Regular maintenance is also conducted
as to reduce the noise generated due to wearing of the components
in those machines.

A2. USE OF RESOURCE

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

Electricity is the major energy consumption for the Group’s
operations. According to characteristics of different stored products,
temperatures is set within a reasonable range in order to strike a
balance between satisfying the safety requirement and reduction
of energy consumption. In office, the air-conditioning setting is 26
Degree Celsius in summer.

High quality standard diesel is used to ensure machineries can
operate smoothly. Besides, the Group decided to purchase steam
instead of generating by its own. It saves 96% of fuel consumption
for boilers and reduces emission at the same time.

Water

In order to monitor the usage of water, meters are installed in
different locations and water consumption is recorded regularly.
In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according to the
actual water usage. To conserve water resource, treated wastewater,
which meets the relevant quality standard, is reused for greenery
area or fire-fighting.

Nitrogen

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process is
controlled automatically instead of manually. The usage of nitrogen is
monitored to ensure there is no leakage.
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A3. THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group’s terminal is near to the waterbody with high biodiversity
and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group’s internal policies,
efforts have been made to minimize the impact on the environment.
For example, two sets of oil spill monitoring and alerting system
have been installed in the water body near the terminal. The system
is able to detect oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is
berthing or oil products being loaded. To strength the pollution
control, the Group has cooperated with a company specialized
for handling oil spill accidents to equip adequate facilities (e.g. oil
boom).

B. SOCIAL ASPECT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and are
committed to improve in these four areas: employment, health and
safety, development and training and labour standard.

B1. EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with the
aim to provide good and safe working environment to its staff in
order to comply with “Labor Contract Law of PRC". It sets out
the Group's standards for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines,
remuneration scale, holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental
leaves and work hour. All employees are treated equally and their
employment, remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be
affected by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status. In
2016, no concluded cases regarding employment brought against
the issuer or its employees were noted.

B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group is
committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all its
employees and the community according to Group’s “Health,
Safety and Environment Policy Statement”. The Group continues
to improve the working conditions and monitor the effectiveness
of safety related controls. The Group complies with related health
and safety laws and regulations such as “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”, “Production
Safety Law of the PRC” and “Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites” etc. In 2016,
no concluded cases regarding health and safety brought against the
issuer or its employees were noted.
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Care to Employee

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal protective
equipment (helmet, googles and masks etc.) in the workplace.
Occupation hazards assessment is conducted by third party regularly
to monitor the performance on occupational safety.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employee in workplace is crucial. Key safety precautions
are implemented as follows:

1. Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and emergency
cut-off valve are installed in each berth.

2. Parameters of all flammable and explosive substance are
closely monitored (e.g. temperature, pressure, flow volume)
during transferring. All parameters information is transferred
to PLC (Programmable Logic Controllers) in the terminal
control center for monitoring the frontline operation.

3. Worker, who enters the tank, must wear protective clothes
and makes sure the toxic gas concentration does not exceed
the acceptable level.

4. Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing apparatus
are provided.

B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group continues to provide comprehensive training to
employees to promote a learning culture base on the Group’s
“Training Management Procedure” and other related internal
policies. The Group provides diversified on-the-job training to
employees, particularly safety training, which is our primarily
concern. Generally, there are both internal and external trainings
for employees. Every new employee will receive a three-month
training including general knowledge and skills about storage
tanks. Continuous assessment is conducted to keep track on the
performance of employee. The Group also offers on-the-job training,
which based on the operation needs and annual training plan. It
aims to enhance the performance and skill of employees.

External training mainly includes certification training for specialists
(e.g. safety management personnel, engineers, accountants etc.).
The Group invites related government department and institution
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.
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B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employee, especially gender
equality and are strongly against employment of child labour and
forced labour. The Group strictly complies with “Labour Law of
PRC" and other relevant laws and regulations. Recruitment guideline
clearly states that person under 16 is not allowed to work in the
Group and zero tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

In 2016, the Group was not subject to any punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to child
labour or forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group depends on suppliers to provide production materials
and components for different storage facilities. The choice of
suppliers based on a list of criteria, including compliance, price,
quality, stability of supply and after-sales services in accordance to
the Group’s internal policy “Material Procurement Management
Regulations”. The Group maintains a long-term relationship with
suppliers based on the result from supplier assessment. In 2016, the
assessment result is satisfactory and there are no significant risks
related to supply chain in environmental and social aspects.

B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Maintaining safety and quality of customers’ product in the
warehouse is the utmost concern for the Group. The Group has
internal policy - “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures to control the quality
and safety of the storage services. The Group has also certified for
the I1SO 9000 (Quality Management System). In 2016, the Group
was not subject to any disputes relating to the storage service or
punishment by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit
related to product responsibility.

Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to provide
Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored. Besides, all
storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United Nation Number)
and other relevant numbers for identification.
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When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample testing
on the goods, verify the certification or testing report provided by
the suppliers and check if the name, specification and technical
information of the sample meet the national/international standards.
Only goods that pass the testing and meet the related requirements
can be stored in the Group’s warehouse.

In 2016, two complaints related to the efficiency of goods unloading
were received. The Group responded to the cases immediately and
explained to the clients. The situation has improved after adjustment
of the working schedule of employees and increased number of
staff to support the job duties.

Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with relevant laws and
regulations. According to Group’s Staff Handbook, employee is
required to sign an agreement to protect the privacy of clients and
any other sensitive business information.

B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery in
any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Il — Crimes
of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market Economy”, “Chapter
VIl - Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the PRC”, “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance in HKSAR"” and other relevant laws and

regulations relating to anti-corruption.

The Group's adopted “Compliance Policies” and it mentions that
the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will not export, re-
export, or otherwise divert customer’s products and other items in
violation of any Trade Control Laws. All the employees and external
drivers who can assess to the customers’ products are monitored.
For example, the weight of truck is checked when it enters and
leaves the premises to monitor any abnormal loading.

The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. In 2016, no concluded
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees were noted.
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COMMUNITY

BS.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contribute to the society and foster
positive relationship with the communities in which the Group
operates. The Group has related policies and measures to understand
the needs of the community, such as villagers, employees and non-
governmental organizations. Contribution to the community and
maintaining harmonious relationship with the stakeholders in the
region of operation are crucial for the sustainable development. The
Group is actively involved in different activities as follows:
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Donation of RMB50,000 to Dong Guan Charity Federation
(Shatian) GREemZZ=EY HH &) to support fighting poverty.

Donation to a small village (/NEEHY) in the community for
supporting the activities and involvement of villagers to express
their needs and demands in order to maintain a harmonies
community. The Group also recruits local residents first for
housekeeping duties.

Sponsorship to a Dragan-boat Race in Dragan Boat Festival
and participating in a Fire-fighting competition organized
by Humen Port (F2F95#) in order to raise the awareness of
occupational health and safety.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

KPMG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 61 to 131, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b)
to the consolidated financial statements which describes that the
Group is committed to repay bank loans and interest totalling
HK$104,697,000 within one year and that the Group’s ability to
meet these liquidity requirements depends on its ability to generate
sufficient net cash inflows from future operations and/or other
sources. These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash flows from future
operations and/or other sources to meet its liquidity commitments.
Further details are set out in note 1(b). The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result should
the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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ASSESSING POTENTIAL IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTERESTS IN LAND
HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASES

MR BERRE  URBEELEMHEEREH
P+ s R AR A9 TR E

Refer to accounting policy (h) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

BREtER

BB SRR 2 5t R BT (h) R BTAE 10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENENAREZSEE

The Group’s principal activities are the provision of
terminal, storage, warehousing and transshipment
services for oil and petrochemical products in the
southern region of the People’s Republic of China
("PRC™).

At 31 December 2016, the Group's property, plant
and equipment and interests in land held for own use
under operating leases accounted for 91% of the total
assets of the Group. These assets principally comprised
dock and storage facilities which had a carrying value
HK$901 million as at 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded a loss from operations of HK$16 million.
The current economic environment in the PRC and
the volatility of oil prices have created uncertainty
in relation to the demand for the Group’s facilities.
Consequently, management considered that potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
interests in land held for own use under operating
leases existed as at 31 December 2016.
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Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment and interests in land
held for own use under operating leases included the
following:

e  evaluating management'’s identification of CGUs
and the of property, plant and equipment,
interests in land held for own use under operating
leases and other assets allocated to each CGU;

e assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments of
the property, plant and equipment and interests
in land held for own use under operating leases
were based;
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The Key Audit Matter
HRETTSEE

Management performed impairment assessments
of property, plant and equipment and interests in
land held for own use under operating leases using
the value in use model and compared the aggregate
carrying values of each separately identifiable cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the property, plant
and equipment and interests in land held for own use
under operating leases had been allocated with the
net present values of the respective discounted cash
flow forecasts to determine the amount of impairment
which should be recognised for the year, if any.

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and interests in land
held for own use under operating leases as a key
audit matter because of the significant management
judgement required in making assumptions and
estimations, which can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN FTNAREZER

challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue, future
operating costs and the growth rate with
historical performance, committed contracts on
hand, the financial budgets of the Group which
had been approved by the directors and externally
derived data, which included projected growth
rates, projected inflation rates and industry
analyses published by external research institutes;

assessing the discount rates applied in the
discounted cashflow forecasts by benchmarking
against those of other similar companies in the
same industry;
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETER BMWESTMAEEZER

e evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations by
comparing the forecasts at the end of the
previous financial year for revenue, operating
costs and the growth rate with the actual
outcomes in the current year and investigating
reasons for any significant differences between
the forecast and actual results;

e performing sensitivity analyses of both the
discount rates and future revenue and considering
the resulting impact on the impairment
assessments and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ~ #AREMBHREREZHMB S UPNES
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EBFHFHHEMELEE - HMEEBET
information comprises all the information included in the annual ~ERFHRANZEEES - ETEEGES M
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our  ¥& R FFIHZEEN RS

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover ~ HMI¥ARE M BHMENE RIL TREE My

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 5.8 * IR EZFEAME B H KM
conclusion thereon. TR EERE K ©
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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]

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEBRTER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-T—"F+-A=+—HBIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZ&TTHI7R)

Revenue WA 3 222,347 223,203
Direct costs and operating expenses Bk 2N J 4844 & F (180,482) (193,210)
41,865 29,993
Other income E Atz 4 2,114 6,393
Administrative expenses THEHR (60,097) (63,261)
Loss from operations REEE (16,118) (26,875)
Finance costs BT RK ZR 5(a) (55,491) (70,656)
Loss before taxation BRFLATE IR 5 (71,609) (97,531)
Income tax PS5 6(a) (7,699) (2,742)
Loss for the year FREE (79,308) (100,273)
Attributable to: PEAE -
Equity shareholders of the Company A2 FIA&ER (75,611) (94,469)
Non-controlling interests eI S (3,697) (5,804)
Loss for the year FREE (79,308) (100,273)
Loss per share BREE 9
— basic —EHK (2.03 cents )  (2.53 cents 1llI)
— diluted —EE (2.03 cents i)  (2.53 cents flli)

The notes on pages 67 to 131 form part of these financial #HRE67E 1318 2 M s A4 K IS5t
statements. Bk —&H -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—~F+-_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFTEIR)

Loss for the year FAEE (79,308) (100,273)

Other comprehensive income for the year: FRHM2EUK :

[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to  E&rJREEFHEE

consolidated income statement: REIBRAMIER ¢
— Exchange differences on translation of —RENE QR
financial statements of subsidiaries R R ERE (12,501) (17,196)

Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEWNZEEE (91,809) (117,469)
Attributable to: FE(E :
Equity shareholders of the Company ViN/NE )i 323 (86,974) (110,289)
Non-controlling interests PR (4,835) (7,180)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEWEHELE (91,809) (117,469)

The notes on pages 67 to 131 form part of these financial #FHRE67E X 1318 2 M eI A4 K It S5t
statements. BHR2 —#D -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

at 31 December 2016 R=Z—<F+=-A=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZ&TTHI7R)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

Prepayments for construction costs

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

Consumable parts

Trade and other receivables

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Bank loans and other borrowings

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

63 EBEFRERAR —T—AEER

FRBEE

LE T E
RIBKEHERIEE R
Z i
FREERAR 2 BN IR
BVEE
EEHIREE

RBEE
REBLEHERIES N
b £

HFEMm

B 5 M EAD EIRIR
R RIA
RAekREFEAR

REAE
HAb R FIR AR E A
RITERREMER

RBEE(AF)FE
REERRBAE

10(b)

11
17(b)

10(b)

13
17(a)
14(a)

15
16

938,981 1,088,906
221,861 243,603
9,679 10,667
1,900 1,988
6,023 14,839
1,178,444 1,360,003
6,301 6,727
13,497 14,145
66,806 61,600
- 545
22,235 52,703
108,839 135,720
50,308 50,314
55,897 109,211
| 106,205 159,525
2,634 (23,805)
1,181,078 1,336,198



Consolidated Balance Sheet
HEBEESER

at 31 December 2016 R=Z—A&F+=-A=+—H1
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TEIR)

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Bank loans and other borrowings
Amounts due to related parties

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total (deficit)/equity attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

March 2017.

Yang Dong
B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 67 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

FREBEE
EEFIBEE 17(b) 3,952 4,776
RITERREMESR 16 924,536 1,016,947
&~ B8 5 2 SR IE 18 259,089 228,696
. \18r577 1,250419
(8l EEZRE (6,499) 85,779
BEARNR#E
AR AR 21(b) 373,264 373,264
=] (395,492) (308,049)
AN T RRELE
(B5#t), =
(22,228) 65,215
FFiERRER 15,729 20,564
(4L, RERS (6,499) 85,779

KA HET % -

Zhang Lei
Director

EF

BwERZ—8D °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERZER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=—ZT—R"F+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA#TE3IR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARIRREGER

Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Statutory Capital  Accumulated controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Bx  RGEE KRR EXRR  iERRE  ERER RER ARt FERER L
§1000 §1000 §'000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000
n n i S0 S i n T S0

Balanceat 1 January 2015 A=%-%f
-B-Rzéh 373,264 70471 (51428 116,002 31,947 - B2 17503 27,744 202,779

Changesin equity for2015;  —E-TERRRE:

Loss for the year EhER = - = = - - (94469 (94469) (5804) (100273
Other comprehensive income £t 2ENE - - - (15,820) - - - (15,820) (1,376) (17.1%)
Total comprehensive income SANGEE - - - (15,820) - - (94.469) (110,289) (7.180) (117.469)
Issuance of convertible bonds TR R(ER - - - - - 469 - 469 - 469
Balance at 31 December 2015 A=F-1f
and 1 January 2016 TZA=1-BR
ut L3
-B-Bets 373,264 10477 (251,428) 100,182 31,947 469 (899,69) 65,215 20,564 85,779

Changes in equity for 2016; ~ =B-~ERREH:

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (75611) (75611) (3,697) (79308
Other comprehensive income ~ EH2EE - - - (11,363) - - - (11,363) (1138 (12501
Totel comprehensive income 2 FEEE - - - (11363) - - (1B611)  (86974) (4833 (91,809
Redemption of convertble bonds  EER iR {ES - - - - - (469) - (469) - (469)

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=F-x&
t=A=t-A
g 373,264 0477 (251,428) 88819 31947 - (975,307) (22.228) 15,729 (6,499)

The notes on pages 67 to 131 form part of these financial &R $67EZE1318 2 M3 AR Z0t
statements. Bk —&5H -
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Consolidated Cash
GEHERER

Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—~F+-_A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFTEIR)

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations

People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
Enterprise Income Tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Capital expenditure

Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets

Interest received

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Advances from a related party

Repayment to a related party

Repayment of bank loan

(Repayment of)/proceeds from
issuance of convertible bonds

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

The notes on pages 67 to 131 form part of these financial

statements.

66

EEEH
LEEEFSIRE 14(b) 88,060 102,913
Bt E ARKEME
([ B EMSH - (1,070)
EEITHMERSFE
I SSACUNE Lolens
BREEE
BRI (20,066) (10,791)
BAEFEEZ YT
(96) -
B UF B 313 393
HEYE  BEK
B Z TS EAE 32 1
BRREBMARSFE (19.817) (10,397)
BEEE
EFLE (55,813) (71,032)
RA 5 B S 0B 43,322 6,250
(EZ A8 7 A (5.852) (6,230)
BEIBITER (29,259) (62,297)
AR ES 2 (B8
)BTRS F0E (50,000) 50,000
BEEEFTARESRE
_________ (97.602)  (83309)
RERBLEEEH
GRA),/EinEEE (29,359) 8,137
R—B—BZBEER
REEEER 52,703 46,032
INEERBE) 2 5
(1,109) (1,466)
R+=A=+—Hz
HERBELEEER 14(a) 22,235 52,703

HNE67BE 1318 Z M 3T BB LS 5
EiREk 2 —3D °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BEEAERIN)

1

67

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

ERRRERAT

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

—TREFR

BEX

(a)

(b)

BRTEER

BRES
WELRE M B RE DRIEMEE
Rz (EAMBHRSED((F
BUBREERD )RR - LR
WAREREEEMAG (&
AERIAE ) EM ZFEEA
ZAERICE AT B E AR -
(BEAGEAD(TEBGE
AN k2E - BAARERA
BAEAR BB Z BEBMRE
WEMBRENMTEEBHE R
HPTARARES EMARA( L
MARADERZ BEBERE - A%
ERAZEAS T BREEN
o

BEGFMAGEEME TH
IR ERT (BT B RELE
) RAKEZEmMEsT M
BRI IR AT ERAR © PRE
HOREE VIR ZFH# T K
REAERT 2 2R (RN B R R BR
KU FR MR 2 A ST IR R
Al 25t AR ARRE) Pr 5l B2 A
S BRESHZER -

HBRRZ AR
HE-F-AF+-A=+—A
IR B ARERRDEAR
AREHBATZER -

B BHRR TR 2 FH EEE
RE L PRANESE -
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net liabilities of
$6,499,000 and incurred net loss of $79,308,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2016. As disclosed in note
22(b), the Group is committed to incur non-operating
cash outflows of $104,697,000 within one year, being (i)
repayment of bank loans of $27,949,000 in June 2017
and $30,184,000 in December 2017; and (ii) payment
of interest of $46,564,000. The Group will be unable
to repay these bank loans and interest in full when they
fall due unless it is able to generate sufficient net cash
inflows from its operations and/or other sources, since as
at 31 December 2016, the Group only had cash and cash
equivalents of $22,235,000.

The directors have been taking various initiatives to
improve the Group's operating cash flows, which include:

— implementing various strategies to improve the
Group’s storage, warehousing and transshipment
income to generate additional operating cash
inflows;

—  putting extra efforts on the collection of trade
debtors to improve the debtors turnover days; and

— actively and regularly reviewing its capital structure
and sourcing additional capital by issuing bonds or
new shares, where appropriate.

As part of its going concern assessment, the Group
has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast and
concluded that material uncertainties exist regarding
the Group’s ability to successfully implement the above
initiatives and therefore the achievability of the forecast.

These facts and circumstances continue to indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

Based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow
forecast mentioned above, the directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 on a
going concern basis. Should the Group not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in these financial
statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

“ERFFER

(b)

MBHRRZMAEEE (&)

ERNLREEERMERSRA
A BEERRRFELEEER
HAKEHE_T—RFt+-H
=t AEFEZMBERRER
BB - WAKREEEAEERTE
RREERRE - QIZBEL AR -
DR EEEEEE KL SHE
WA REEE 2 b B BB -
UARHSERBEENIFREBIE
DRIEFH D BRRDEER RS
BfE AFHABZFEVARNZ
FHMIEHERRR -

RREFE(EBUBEREEL]D
2K BREETERA
BPREANUREE  -B8E K
ARFY 2 23 EIEL HE -
it R - BT REER
RO BATLES  UEZIE
EERBATIHEBESE 2 HAb
ERm{EL - BRAZBREBKER
REEHMERRBRIEENR
B2 BREE D FIET 2 2 -
ERERA e EBAETERT
A o

AR BFEL A RARBRRE
TE - MREFHEFTZEHR
EREZHE - RIBRTERER
T E RS - HMREHEE
BB AN AR KORSREAR - BIE
18 57 8 17 5B o A i % oK 2 A e e

27
EA)

B e 2 7 2L R B 7E B R S B 7
BREBAZENEEV TR
o 2E B DB P O 1 B f Y
TEE RN ERRIR



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R 2R it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTSIR + BEEAZERIN)

1

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9]

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(m) or (p) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

1(1).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

ERRRERAT

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 30 years
—  Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
—  Office equipment 5-10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5-10 years

—  Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(h)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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(g) Leased assets (continued)

0}

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
that land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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(h)

Impairment of assets

0}

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

0}

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— interests in land held for own use under
operating leases;

- intangible assets;
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(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

77

Impairment of other assets (continued)

non-current prepayments; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

0]

()

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any provision
for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.
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(k)

)

(m)

Convertible bonds (continued)

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly
to retained profits.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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(n) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date after taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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(o)

SHEZAERIN)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination) and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on undistributed profits of
investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Other payables

Other payables (including amounts due to related parties)
are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable.

(i)  Port income is recognised upon performance of the
services.

(ii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

ERRRERAT

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB") respectively. The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(t)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use are complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

0

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0

(ii)

(vi)

ERRRERAT

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(u) Related parties (continued)

(v)

(b)  (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern

As disclosed in note 1(b), the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis as they are
of the opinion that the Group has adequate sources of
liquidity to fund the Group’s working capital and to meet
its debt obligations as they become due based on the cash
flow forecast prepared by the directors. Any adverse result
on the actual future cash flow would affect the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted future
cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying
amount and value in use and provides for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group’s financial position.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is assessed and provided based on the management’s
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect the
Group's profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during the reporting
period. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
(d) Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business for which calculations of the ultimate
tax provision is uncertain. The final outcomes are subject
to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed
provisions or tax losses may not be carried forward.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
related to tax loses, depends on the management’s
expectation of taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Any difference of the
actual outcome and estimated profit would affect the
utilisation of deferred tax assets.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are provision of
terminal, storage, warehousing and transshipment services
for oil and petrochemical products.

Revenue represents port income and storage,
warehousing and transshipment income. The amount of
each significant category recognised in revenue during the
year is as follows:

2

3

BT ARG (2)
(d) BiEERE

BEMGHAGBRTEZMFELH
B - REEEBBETEHIRA
?m#EﬁEiTﬁEZ*%
REBRZITHEERNRZE -
W%FEZEE& F%ﬁz
CHEAMBERETSEE

BERIBEE (X ERFIARE
B ZERBRREEE A
BARAEBERETREZHARF
FERDL A 2 TR - BFRAERE
RN ABENERGER
BETHBAEENER -

WA R D IR
(@ WA

AREE 2 EREB DR A MM
AEERBE - 77 - RELRE
B R

WAIEEARA R - BEM
BHWA - FARBARRERZ
BEEXRERISTNT

F - BEER
sz lg A
BOWA

Storage, warehousing and
transshipment income
Port income

In 2016, the Group has no customer (2015: Nil) with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenues. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the Group’s major customers are set out in note
22(a).
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(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

0]

Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"”): this segment
represents the Group's provision of terminal, storage,
warehousing and transshipment activities carried out
in Panyu, the PRC.

Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group'’s provision of
terminal, storage and transshipment activities carried
out in Dongguan, the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include other payables and accruals
attributable to the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

0}

3

WAR D EB®RE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DBW/E (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) 2IEE EERER
(&)
The measure used for reporting segment profit/ FERD 23 A (E8) Fr
(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted Rz EAIB A S
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/ M CEE) | - BT RETH
(loss) before taxation”, the Group’s earnings/ BRI Z&RAERF (S
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically 8) | o AER A
attributed to individual segments, such as head office MR AREEZR
or corporate administration costs. (B8 ) gt 37 £ 4 5 83
BIERI S A 2 EE (AR
R RATEAK A ) 1E H 38
%Ek o
In addition to receiving segment information MIES A BAKRE AT ,ﬁnﬂ/
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation, management (EB18) 25 ZLAERIN -
is provided with segment information concerning 18 [E R ERMEA quﬁz)\
revenue, interest income and finance costs. FEWARBI RN 2 5
AR -
Information regarding the Group's reportable HE-_ZT—RNEE =
segments provided to the Group’s most senior —hFE+ZA=+—8HI
executive management for the purposes of resource EE - FEEEHTAER
allocation and assessment of segment performance BEeETHRERABNUD
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is RER LT HOERIE 2
set out below. REERHEDFHERH
SR -
XHIT DzIT Total
PMRALE RMALE @t
2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE ZE-RE = “E-1fF —Z-XE ZZT-1f
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr Tr
Reportable segment  A[FRE D EUA
revenue 124,231 110,318 98,116 112,885 222,347 223,203
Reportable segment RIS D EERHAI
profit/{loss) before mﬁﬂ/ (B#E)
taxation 35,210 11,518 (74,487)  (79,743)  (39,277)  (68,225)
Interest income FIEHA 258 306 4 77 299 383
Finance costs BIHERAR 6,421 11,057 46,900 59,599 53,321 70,656
Reportable segment  ATREHHEE
assets 1,236,858 1,340,190 944,885 1,083,813 2,181,743 2,424,003
Reportable segment  AEREDHEE
liabilities 1,098422 1209914 924,265 983,785 2,022,687 2,193,699
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3  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSHBHRE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2IBW/E (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AFHRESBBA - B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBBZHER

Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue ALERE D EPUA 222,347 223,203
Consolidated revenue REUA 222,347 223,203
Loss 518
Reportable segment loss A ¥RE D BB AT 1R

before taxation (39,277) (68,225)
Unallocated other expenses FAOREMT (621) (193)
Unallocated head office and ROBBIH R AR H

corporate expenses (31,711) (29,113)
Consolidated loss before taxation 44 & EiAIE B (71,609) (97,531)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR E D EE 2,181,743 2,424,003
Elimination of inter-segment S EE D S0 2 FEU Z IR

receivables (907,429) (966,691)

1,274,314 1,457,312

Unallocated head office and AOB SR AR BE

corporate assets 12,969 38,411
Consolidated total assets MEREE 1,287,283 1,495,723
Liabilities =Rt
Reportable segment liabilities ARESEAE 2,022,687 2,193,699
Elimination of inter-segment Natki=pan= I WAl AN

payables (907,429) (966,691)

1,115,258 1,227,008

Unallocated head office and b NN e /NI =L

corporate liabilities 178,524 182,936
Consolidated total liabilities LeEmafE 1,293,782 1,409,944
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARZB®HSE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DHFHwE (&)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEER
The following table sets out information about the TR AREHERALE ()4
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from SEBINBREAE 2
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, ARGNAEB 2% - &
plant and equipment, interests in land held for own Bh#&m RELEHEDO
use under operating leases, intangible assets, non- BIEERAz ThExs - &
current prepayments (“specified non-current assets”). WEE  ERBENNKIE
The geographical location of customers is based on ([{ETIERBEE]) TE
the location at which the services were provided. The EzER - BRETEM
geographical location of the specified non-current [ DA 42 2 AR 7% 2 b B A K
assets is based on the physical location of the asset. B - BEFERBEEME
e AEEZ BRFTEN
BRI -
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
INERE B RS Z A EEFRBEE

Hong Kong B8 - - 2,729 3,141
PRC (excluding HE (TeE
Hong Kong) &E) 222,347 223,203 1,169,692 1,342,023
222,347 223,203 1,172,421 1,345,164
4 OTHER INCOME 4 Htlzs

Interest income FE U A 313 393
Government grants BT 48 B 200 253

Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment RiERER (1,058) (31
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Y e 5 606 3,123
Others Hith 2,053 2,655
2,114 6,393
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5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BREAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: Brid AT E 1B Th S HIBR N A X IRR =
e

(a) Finance costs (a) BAEERA
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 55,491 70,656
(b) Staff costs* (b) BEIRRA*
Contributions to defined A E BB RGRIRET S
contribution retirement plans EH Z 1 2,931 3,013
Salaries, wages and other benefits H - TE REMEF 59,199 59,012
62,130 62,025
(c) Other items () HMEB
Amortisation BEH
- land lease premium — tHHEEE 6,597 7,022
- intangible assets — BREEE 170 203
Depreciation e 102,966 118,417
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2K B B
— audit services — TR ARTES 1,358 1,358
— review services — FEFR 380 380
Operating lease charges on MENKETEEER
properties* 4,602 4,201
*  Staff costs include $1,800,000 (2015: $1,800,000) relating to * BINABEYWENKEEE
operating lease charges on properties, which amount is also % F 1,800,000 (=T — A F :
included in the respective total amount disclosed separately 1,800,0007T) * & RIBIFAT AR Lt
above. ERFEFER S B 4B5ER -
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6

STATEMENT

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:

mERBERPZAER

(a)

mEBEBmRPZAEBIE

Current tax - PRC Enterprise BNEARE E — R
Income Tax FrfBHt

Under-provision in respect of prior BEFERETR
years

Deferred tax — origination and reversal  JEERIE —FiF =R 7
of temporary differences (note 17(b))  E4 K BB (Fi5E17(b))

Notes:
() No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended

31 December 2016 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong
Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2015: Nil).

(i)  The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was 25% (2015: 25%).
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 HREBRRPZABHR(E)
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) BEABENESRERLES
loss at applicable tax rates: BB HENT

Loss before taxation KA A E 1R (71,609) (97,531)
Notional tax on loss before tax, REANB ARG EE

calculated at the rates applicable BERE(R 2 TR R BRTR AT

in the tax jurisdictions concerned EEtE ZEHE (15,246) (22,037)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “Na] #4157 H > Fi 7% 27 2 3,473 2,443
Tax effect of non-taxable income IR AZ R E ) )
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KRR 2 RAFATIEE B

recognised LIRS 21,142 22,262
Tax effect of previously unrecognised 3BERFER @ WK

tax losses recognised this year NEFHER 2 THIA

ER 2 B s & (1,700) =

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETRE - 43
Others Hh 32 3
Actual tax expense BERTIAR S 7,699 2,742
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7  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBEE B R EEGIF383(1)ER A A
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (BEZEENEER)ROIFE2EBKE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of JEEMESHT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2016 —E—XREF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
{1 in kind contributions
B 2R BHRGHE
EEZnd By HR
$000 $'000 $000
T T T
Executive directors BiTES
David An S - 4,820 60 4,880
Yang Dong (appointed on BR(NZZE—~EtA
13 July 2016) +=HEZM) - 1,064 81 1,145
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas w58
(resigned on (RZZ—t5F
24 February 2017) ZAZTMEEE) - 975 403 1,378
Liu Zhijun 2E= - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei K& - 1,209 336 1,545

Independent non-executive

directors BIFHTES
Li Wai Keung EX L 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony iR (E 120 - - 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose =\ 120 - - 120

360 9,043 940 10,343
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7

99

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

7 EEMeE)

2015 —E—HEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fee inkind  contributions
- ERL R RIRGHE
EEvokn B it
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Executive directors HITES
David An B - 4,860 60 4,920
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas YK - 975 18 993
Liu Zhijun AEE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 18 1,227
Independent non-executive BIEHTES
directors
Li Wai Keung FER 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony fEiRE 120 - = 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose =)\ 120 - - 120
360 8,019 156 8,535

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years.

EBRERERAT —T—REFERHR

BE_Z-R"ER_Z-RF+-A
=t+—RIEFEHE  ARAHED
NRENERSHT XM ESAT A%
REFMALREMALEE - AR
SIREFMBAAREE S IMAKK RS
TERBERIME - £ MET L RZH
NHEEREXRZREEMME -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, all (2015: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect
of the remaining individual during the year ended 31 December
2015 is as follow:

REHMAL
RASERARSHFMA LS 268
—T-0F  WR)ATHR/ARE
B HMERXME7THRE - RE=E
—E-RE+A=+—BLFE
AN B I —RBATHMEIT

SN & ELAth A2 F
Contributions to defined contribution — EXEHEFGRAKRET 2]
retirement plans Z B

Salaries and other benefits

The emolument of the remaining individual during the year
ended 31 December 2015 with the highest emoluments is
within the following band:

- 837

REBEE_Z—HF+-_A=+—8H1
FEN  zamaTWALZEEN
TLATEE :

Number of individuals

AB

Nil — $1,000,000 £ —1,000,0007T

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $75,611,000 (2015: $94,469,000) and the
weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2015:
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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BREAR#ESE
BREAREEEBETREFARA
Al E B R AR R FE (5 E51875,611,000
oo (= & — B F : 94,469,000
L) RBETLBERMETFHH
3,732,638,000 s TR (=T —H
F : 3,732,638,00008 EiEAR ) EHE -
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BERRZHE
(a) Reconciliation of carry amount (a) FREEYER
Interests in
[and held
for own use
Dock and under
storage Office Motor  Leasehold operating
Buildings facilities  equipment vehicles improvements  Sub-total leases
RE
BenE
BER HENE KERRRZ
BERE  BAZRE AE &8 gt TR
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
i T i i i i
(note Kz (b))
Cost: BA:
Attlanuay 2016 R=E-7~E-A-A 51866 1,840,066 7,084 19,567 1892 1920475 306,181 2,226,656
Exchange adjustments (& 8% (3,288) (117,366) (426) (1,140) - (122,220) (19,408) (141,628)
Additions HE = 18311 607 505 - 19423 - 19,423
Disposals ik - (8,214) (20) (#13) - (4,652) - (4,652)
At31 December 2016 R=E—A%
+-B=+-H 48,578 1,736,797 7,245 18514 1,892 1,813,026 286,773 2,099,799
Accumulated 2ithE
depreciationand ~ R&H
amortisation:
At 1 January 2016 RZF—"E-A-A 14713 793,924 5,136 17,145 651 831,569 55,851 887,420
Exchange adjustments ~ [E 5 3% (1,007) (54,608) (314) (999) - (56,928) (3,837) (60,765)
Charge for theyear  £EHE 1,663 99,716 575 696 316 102,966 6,597 109,563
Written back on disposals 7\ ER R - (3170 (17) (375) - (3.562) - (3,562)
At31 December 2016 =51\ F
TZA=t-H 15,369 835,862 5,380 16,467 967 874,045 58,611 932,656
Net book value: REFE
At31 December 2016 =F—71F
TZA=t-H 33,209 900,935 1,865 2,047 925 938,981 228,162 1,167,143
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERREE)
(a) Reconciliation of carry amount (continued) (a) EREIEXER(E)

Interests in
[and held
for own use
Dock and under
storage Office Motor Leasehold operating
Buildings faclities ~ equipment vehicles  improvements Sub-total

(note i3 (b)

Cost: R

At 1 January 2015 RZF-1%-f-A 55,081 1,949,737 7208 20,501 1,892 2,034,419 325,160 2,359,579
Bichange adjustments [ 5352 (3215 (114081) (386) (1,109) - (118,791) (18979 (137,770)
Additions HE = 6,386 314 352 - 7,052 - 7,052
Disposals HE = (1,976) (52) (17) - (2,205) - (2,205)

At31 December 2015 R-Z—-1&E
+ZA=t-8 51,866 1,840,066 7,084 19,567 1,892 1,920,475 306,181 2,226,656

Accumulated ZEREH:

depreciation and

amortisation:

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-F-A 13,809 728,624 4,857 17,007 33% 764,652 52,167 816,819
Exchange adjustments [ 3% (881) (47.220) (276) (943) - (49,327) (333%) (52,665)
Chargefortheyear ~ EEHE 1,785 114,495 601 1,220 316 118,417 7022 125439
Written back on disposals Ft EREE - (1,968) (40) (159) - 2173) - (2173)

At31December 2015 R-E-1E
+=A=t—H 14713 793,924 5,136 17,145 651 831,569 55,851 887,420

Net book value: BREFE:
At31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+-A=+-H 37,153 1,046,142 1,948 2422 1,241 1,088,906 250,330 1,339,236
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) AEEEFHBITHER T i
PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net EF#E - HEHRS0FE - RZF
book value as at 31 December 2016 includes an amount —NFTZA=T—BZEREF
of $6,301,000 (2015: $6,727,000) which is disclosed as BEABEE%6,301,000T(=F
interest in land held for own use under operating leases —h% :6,727,0007T) * R
under current assets. BEER 2 BBELCEHERER
Rz i s R #E R -
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERSZEE)

1

103 EELRERAT

() The analysis of net book value of properties is as

follow:

In PRC:
Medium-term leases

Representing:
Buildings

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost: RN

At 1 January »w—A—H 3,795 3,828

Exchange adjustments PE 5 F5 2R (32) (33)

Additions NE 96 -

At 31 December Rt+—-—B=+—H 3,859 3,795

Accumulated amortisation: Rty .

At 1 January »w—A—H 1,807 1,620

Exchange adjustments PE i A% (18) (16)

Charge for the year FEE 170 203

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,959 1,807

Net book value: BRI HE -

At 31 December W+—A=+—H 1,900 1,988
The amortisation charge for the year is included in REEZ#BHEERAAGSRAER
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income [fTEERIF -

statement.

—TREFR

() MREREFEZZFTMOE :

NAFE :
AR HAFR 49 261,371 287,483
(g
gF 33,209 37,153
RIEEEHERIEA R
2 TS 228,162 250,330
261,371 287,483

11 EREE

Club membership
2%
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 RBARZRE
UTIERRBEF

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless

otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiary

WEATZE

Guangdong PetroChemicals
Company Limited
ESRRIIERAA

Oriental Point International Limited

REARARLE

Timeslink Development Limited

BRYEARAA

Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited
ERBRRM IARAR

Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical
Storage & Transportation Ltd.
("GD (Panyu)")

Bi§(ER) bl THERY
BRAR(2E(ER)))

Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical
Development Limited

BMPERM TR RERA
(TehighfL )

Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited
RETFAERAAREERA

(TR )

Place of
operation

Hong Kong
{5

Hong Kong
{5
Hong Kong

Bt

Hong Kong
5

PRC

hE

PRC
G

PRC
G

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid up capital
A BRIk
Bz % BARBAGSE
Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares
&b 20,000,000%
Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares
&b 1,000,0008%
Hong Kong 10,000 shares
&b 10,000%
British Virgin 100 shares of

Islands US$1 each
EERAEHE 100 EREEIET
PRC RMB220,000,000
hEl AE220,000,0007
PRC RMB4,820,800
Rl NBH4.8208007T
PRC RMB374,110,000
] AEH374,110,0007

Note: GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and
hiEA1E and BENBEIES are limited liability companies. The
official names of F#&EA{L and FMEEE are in Chinese and
the English translation are for reference only.
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EXEEMNES

BESXAENTEMBARNFE -
BRIERBHA - BRIME 2RO 5

AR

Attributable
equity interest
iR
Directly  Indirectly
1 3
- 100%
- 100%
100% -
100% -
- 92%
- 92%
- 92%

Principal activities

IERH

Provision of
administrative services

IR

Inactive

EERH

Provision of
administrative services

IR

Investment holding

Provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing and
transshipment services

RUER BF AR
JFELTS

Investment holding

Provision of terminal,
storage and
transshipment services

RHESR  BRREaRk

M BE(ER)R—RKPIGERR
PRACERERNERSRERE
AT - RRALKRMBERZE
ABRAPX > RXBEEHRS

= o
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12

105 EEeRERA

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12
The following table lists out the information relating to GD
(Panyu), the only subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
Loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

VAN

ESEIR G Fadnall]
FRBEE
mBEE
inER=YE
FRBEE
BEFE
FEIER S AR (E

WA

FREE

EE RS
DT IHER R 2 BB

BERBAFRSE
REEDAERS
RETBAERSE

RBLARZRE(E)

TR AKEME—FHEERHER

e ([ R s

DERBAR -8

B(ERINEH - X228
BRI ER AR HEATZ SR -

8%
1,177,824
143,104
(92,967)
(1,031,339)
196,622
15,729

221,296

(46,208)

(44,139)
(3,697)

106,241
(19,924)
(88,754)

8%

1,358,841
134,965
(99,249)
(1,137,503)
257,054
20,564

222,014
(72,552)
(69,505)

(5,804)

139,825
(10,340)
(139,558)
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 EZREMEWRTIE

Trade debtors 2 Z FEWER K 61,164 63,537
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B SRR
(note 13(b)) (BF&E13(0)) - (6,227)
61,164 57,310
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE e EAth e W kI8 5,642 4,290
66,806 61,600
The amount of the prepayments and other receivables BN - FRKEEXERRER 2R
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after more 5 R I8 R H b FE W 38 4 1,130,000
than one year is $1,130,000 (2015: $Nil). Apart from these, T(ZE—RF : Tj) - BRItz
the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be TE A FRIE K H fth FE W R IE TR ER S —
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. FARLENERRER -
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDHT
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of NMEHEB - REERZERHREN
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other MRREERBEGCE S ERKFIR
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of (Gt AE 5 & H th e YRIE ) 2 BR
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: BT

Within 1 month —{EA R 18,811 21,536
Over 1 month but within 2 months ~ —1& A A HEME AKX 3,583 1,684
Over 2 months but within 3 months  F{E B A HE=@EA K 180 1,206
Over 3 months = E) 38,590 32,884
61,164 57,310
Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available RIRHERTE - BREEH—RER
to major customers with well-established trading records. FTERERGHHBZIEERF - X%
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to BERTESRFPIEAH=TRZRE
its trade customers. Further details on the Group's credit B BAAEBEEBRR 2E— P
policy are set out in note 22(a). EEHTEE22(a) °
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(c)

107 EE&FRERAR

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year is as follows:

13 BEZRHMEWEGE)
(b) EBEZEYRIZRE

B 5 MR 2 BB R 1R A B
BRACER - HEMRASEREERRK
HzWEERE  MEEREES
JRE M B 5 R i (R BTRE 1 (h) (i)

FRRBEREZ BBIT -

At 1 January n—H—H
Exchange adjustments b Y
Uncollectible amounts written off i £ £ S A A [B] R IE
At 31 December N+=—B=+—H

At 31 December 2016, no trade debtor (2015:
$6,227,000) was individually determined to be impaired.

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

6,227 121,704
(395) (2,352)
(5,832) (113,125)
= 6,227

(0)

R-E—RE+-_A=+—8"
HERENE T RECE SR
UBR(—ZF—FA 4 : 6,227,000
JT) °

KBEZEWE 5 FRE
WEERISRERGEREZE S
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ@u&%ﬁzgﬁ%ﬂﬁ

I A RSO E

Neither past due nor impaired
BN —EA

B —=mIEA
AR B {E A

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 2 months past due
Over 2 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

VAN

18,811 21,536
3,583 1,684
180 1,206
38,590 32,884
42,353 35,774
61,164 57,310

I 8 B MR RUE 2 FE UK BR5K T
R0 AT HAE A0 R0 ek T RAREY
EFEM -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)

13 EZRHMERREE)
(0 KREEZRKESHEGE)

At 31 December 2016, receivables that were past due over
2 months mainly represents an amount of $38,277,000
due from a customer (“Customer A”) that was in financial
difficulty. To reclaim the trade debtor, the Group filed an
application to the court in the PRC and the court granted
the Group a lien on the Customer A’s goods stored at the
storage facilities of the Group. Subsequently, the goods
were sold by the court through an auction during the
current year. Since certain legal cases relating to Customer
A were still ongoing as at 31 December 2016, the
proceeds from the auction were still under the custody
of the court. In connection with this case, the Group has
obtained a PRC legal opinion and was advised that the
Group has the first priority to receive the proceeds over
other creditors of Customer A. Based on the foregoing,
the directors have reviewed the recoverability of the
amount due from Customer A as at 31 December 2016
and no impairment loss was recognised in this regard.

In addition, there was a dispute with a customer
("Customer B”) on the storage revenue recognised in
2013 of $10 million. The case was put in trials in the
PRC court and the results were in favour of the Group.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Customer B lodged
an application to retrial the case. In connection with this
case, the Group has obtained a PRC legal opinion and was
advised that the court will likely to uphold the previous
judgement. Based on the foregoing, the directors have
reviewed the case and no provision for liability is required
in this regard.

Apart from the above, receivables that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and these balances are considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

14

R-ZT—XRFE+-A=+—8"
i ERRE M E B 2 e GRIB £
TRRE—REVHARSEZE
F(IEFRR])zEKZKES
38,277,0007T ° AU EIE F U
FIE - AEBEE | BRARRIR
B MEARERZEERTA
SEREFRERERRRIEZ
EREEEERE - Hig 28
BRAFEEHELE - BRE
FRERZATERRERF
—NE+ZA=1+—R1NEET
o AE 2B ROR I EART R
& BLEHEMmME - AEBEE
BB AEEREEMN - K&
BEREFRZEMEEARES
— B WEGZEATSOE - &
KRBTl - EEEBHRR -
—ANE+t-A=t+—RHZzREKE
FRF0E 2 o] Y B4 K 3 4 5 1t
MR EETE ©

AN - HMERFL(TEEL])
E—FERN_Z—=58AL
1,0008 LB F WA Z SR FA 4L
4 o ARMTEFRBAL R - &
REAEEBF - -REERRER
BEf% BREIRHHBEERS
- MEEHmS  AEBEE
BRHREEESRWESS - Ak
PR K AT B 435 TR #) o RIS
Fritt - EFDEFHZEME > U H
gﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ&#ﬁ&ﬁ%

B EXCpraiE sl - B s ERE N R
A2 R ER KT BN B % 4
BERIFEBIBIEFER -
RIZBELER EEEMEEHEA
MRS EMMELRERE - RE
REEERITESERNEE - Mk
FEMIBAR B RIS D o A
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ
on °

ReERBREFEER

(a)

RERAEEEREARE:

Cash at bank and on hand

RITERERE
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 14 RERBELEEEEE)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash generated (b) BFipIEERKLELRERS
from operations: ZH

Loss before taxation MRELRTER (71,609) (97,531)
Adjustments for: A NS IEEL AR -
Interest income FEUWA 4 (313) (393)
Finance costs BA & AR 2N 5(a) 55,491 70,656
Depreciation e 5(c) 102,966 118,417
Amortisation of land lease T A & B H
premium 5(c) 6,597 7,022
Amortisation of intangible L A
assets 5(c) 170 203
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWE - BE K&
plant and equipment BB EE 4 1,058 31
Exchange differences PE =58 185 (1,643)

Changes in working capital: BiEEeZEY

(Increase)/decrease in SERES (), SR
consumable parts (260) 1,417
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 R EAMERGRIA
and other receivables (&), E (9,079) 4,604
Increase in other payables H A RIE K
and accruals FHHEE AN 2,854 130
Cash generated KEEBMER®
from operations 88,060 102,913
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15 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 15

Hitt AR RHRE A

Other payables and accruals E e 3RIE KA e &
Deferred revenue R A

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the other payables and
accruals are expected to be settled or recognised as income
within one year.

16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 16
(@) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans
and other borrowings is as follows:

49,741 47,387
567 2,927
50,308 50,314

RZE—REKR-_FT—RAF+=HA
=+—H  FBEEMENRIERTR
EREHN —FABELER A
AO

RITERREMEE
(a) RITERREMEERAEENS
waE

Current liabilities RBAE
Bank loans RITER
Convertible bonds AR ES
Non-current liabilities FRBaE
Bank loans RITE
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55,897 59,680
= 49,531
55,897 109,211
924,536 1,016,947
980,433 1,126,158
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16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 16 $RITEF &E{m{aﬁﬁ"

(b) At 31 December 2016, the bank loans and other (b) R==2—RE+=-HA=+—8 -
borrowings were repayable as follows: 'fEﬁE AR HAEE AR TSI
RIEE :

Bank loans (secured) RITER(HEW)

Within 1 year or on demand R—E NS fEE K 58,133 59,680

After 1 year but within 2 years —FIRERTFA 60,369 62,067

After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 432,643 312,723

After 5 years hF1E 429,288 642,157

L 922,300 1,016,947

980,433 1,076,627

Convertible bonds (unsecured) TR R AE 5 (FRIK )

Within 1 year or on demand R — NS E Z KA - 49,531

(c) At 31 December 2016, the Group had banking facilities () A== /\¢-|— A=+—8 -

(d)

111 =B FRERAR —T—

totalling $980,433,000 (2015: $1,076,627,000) which
were secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with net book value of $723,281,000
(2015: $849,572,000) and interests in land held for
own use under operating leases with net book value
of $215,650,000 (2015: $236,008,000). The banking
facilities were utilised to the extent of $980,433,000 as at
31 December 2016 (2015: $1,076,627,000).

On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with a third party to issue two
series, Series A and Series B, of unsecured convertible
bonds with principal amount up to $50,000,000 each and
one year maturity (“Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible
Bonds are interest-bearing at 8% per annum and the
interest are payable quarterly in arrears. The Convertible
Bonds can be converted to shares of the Company at
$0.3802 per share (“Conversion Price”), subject to anti-
dilutive and dividend protection adjustments. The holder
of the Convertible Bonds (“bond holder”) has the right
to convert all or any part of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company at any time
from the date on which the closing price of the shares
of the Company traded in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
reaches 140% of the Conversion Price up to the maturity
date.

INEFER

(d)

$E@Zfﬂ @é%ﬁrﬁl/\
980,433,00075(_2 AF

1,076,627,0007T) @ JIAAREE
B8R % {8 /& 723,281,000 7T ( —
T — R4 : 849,572,0007T ) Z
%% BE RS ERERSES
215,650,000 c( —FE—HF :

236,008,000 7T ) Z 1R & < |
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1,076,627,0007T) ©
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16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 16 BITERRHEMEEE)
(d) (continued) d) (&)

Series A Convertible Bonds

On 16 December 2015, the Group issued Convertible
Bonds with a maturity date of 16 December 2016 (“Series
A Maturity Date”). The Group may early redeem the
Convertible Bonds from 16 June 2016 to 16 December
2016 at principal amount plus any accrued but unpaid
interest thereon the redemption date. Any Series A
Convertible Bonds not previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled will be redeemed at principal
amount on Maturity Date.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has fully redeemed principal amounts of $50,000,000 of
Series A Convertible Bonds. There was no outstanding
convertible bonds as at 31 December 2016.

Series B Convertible Bonds

No Series B of the Convertible Bonds was issued during
the year and the facility was expired as at 31 December
2016.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(@) Current tax recoverable in the consolidated balance

sheet represents:

RYRARRES

R=ZZ—AF+=A+/"H ' &
SEEBTABRES - BIEA
ABZE—RF+ZA+A~BUE
FIRBEE]) - AEERTHR-F
—NENATABE-_Z—F
+=—A+x8  BEASENESE
B[O B BT REHE R T A A
B REER AR ES o T
SCRIARFER - sEick i E Kt i
Z R R ES - R EIE
BiZ A S 5BHEE -

HE—Z—R"F+-A=+—H
IEFE  AEBERHEL RS
%8 /50,000,000 7T 2 & 5l B 7
WIRES - R-ZE—FE+_-A
§+—E'Mﬁ$ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%

Rz wimRES

FR - AEEREZETRIZA
BRES  MamETAER =
E-RF+-A=t+—HEH-

17 GEEERBERTZAEHR
() REEERERDZAHEERH

HiE -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax recoverable A] 4[] /b B 1> 2 PR S
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17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

17 GEEERBRPZAEHRE)

(b) ERIAELHEEERARE
FRRGEM BN RPRER
EEFIEEE) BEREZE)
ERAAT

follows:

Depreciation

allowances
Future in excess of
benefits of  the related
tax losses depreciation
AR A
BB E wEN
ZARRRI= wERE
$'000 $'000
Fx FT
Deferred tax arising from: FEREFBIERE :
At 1 January 2015 RZTE—HF
—H—H - 5,663 5,663
Exchange adjustments PE 3 650 (306) 344
Transfer from current tax HEENEAR] UL B R T
recoverable B (18,769) = (18,769)
Charged/(credited) to profit Y AGPNE E
or loss (note 6(a)) (FffzE6(a)) 3,280 (581) 2,699
At 31 December 2015 RZT—RHF
+—HA=+—H (14,839) 4,776 (10,063)
At 1 January 2016 R-B—RE
—H—H (14,839) 4,776 (10,063)
Exchange adjustments B 2L 572 (279) 293
Charged/(credited) to profit kR (GTA)BE=R
or loss (note 6(a)) (Ktzx6(a)) 8,244 (545) 7.699
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R
+=—A=+—H (6,023) 3,952 (2,071)
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17

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(0), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$738 million (2015: $661 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries will
expire in 5 years after the relevant tax losses were incurred
while tax losses for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong

do not expire under the current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the
grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of a
foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are

exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $170,922,000 (2015: $156,044,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $8,546,000 (2015: $7,802,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that the

profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and with no fixed terms of repayment.

The related parties have confirmed that they have no intention
to request repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and accordingly, the balances are shown as non-
current.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

“ERFFER

FENRARSE 5 2 AR EEA - BN

BT ERRRSEEERNER A
BErt —EARNENR - Bt - ZFE
IR RIERE °
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Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the scheme”)
for the purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract resources that are available
to the Group and to provide the Company with a means of
giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or
may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force
for a period of 10 years from adoption and expires on 27

December 2022.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any eligible participant
including any employee, director, consultant, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner of the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company, or
any supplier or provider of goods or services to the Company
or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be determined by
the directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of

the Company.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Directors and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil) and no share option was
outstanding under the 2012 scheme as at 31 December 2016

(2015: Nil).
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 21 EXRREE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REZMBERITD 225
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREBREERSHARK D H9)
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HEHR AR B BRI RRA s
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BE)EK o ANNA A S (A=A ED
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s DRARFEEH Y RO EEF
individual components of equity between the beginning 1EEFNT o

and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company AT

Share Share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserves losses

Bx Rt LeN: 1 RithR
$1000 $'000 §/000 §/000
T T T T

Balance at 1 January 2015 R=E-Tf-F-H
k373 373,264 710,477 - (541,931) 541,810

Changes in equity for 2015 —ZB-REREEE :
Loss and total comprehensive  EREE R 2 E K

income for the year ek - - - (4,452) (4:452)
Issuance of convertible bonds  Z{TR[#RE E - - 469 - 469

Balance at 31 December R-B-TE
2015and 1January 2016 +=A=1-H
R-E-RE
—-B—-H2fe 373,264 710,477 469 (546,383) 537,827

Changes in equity for 2016: —B—AFEHZH :
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREEK 2 EWE

income for the year k) - - - (6,756) (6,756)
Redemption of convertible bonds 3Bl 5 - - (469) - (469)
Balance at 31 December 2016 A= —/ <&

+=B=1-8R
2 373,264 710,477 - (553,139) 530,602
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21
(b) Share capital

BARKEE(E)
(b) B&

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREA &8
‘000 $'000
+ T+t
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: EREE0.10TT 2 EER :
Authorised: EE -
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 R-ZT—REN
—TRF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZETRHE -
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 R-ZE—hHERK
—E—RF
+=—A=+—H 3,732,638 373,264

EBRSAEAGRERTRED
IRENRE  YEERALFE
#ZLRER-—FRERR - H
EREREARRRBEETEA

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets. [R&EHAL ©
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves () RFEMERAZ
(i) Share premium (i) BRHRE

B GRERNERAXRS
BHERARE(RER]EE -

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Rl
FRlERE —_TT M

(ii) Special reserve (ii)
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition

(iii)

in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
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(9]

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted as to use and is
not available for distribution.

(v) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the amount allocated
to the unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 1(k).

Distributability of reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$157 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: $164
million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, distributions shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.
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21

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
Further details regarding the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern are disclosed in note 1(b).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital comprises all components of equity,
plus net debt.

During 2016, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was 1.01
and 0.93 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.
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(@) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 1 month past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 5%
(2015: 67%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group's five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 13.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 46% (2015: 27 %) of total
cash and cash equivalents were deposited with a financial
institution in the PRC.
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 22 YHBEBREERAABGE)

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) BLRBMEREE
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEFEETNZ@AREEEREER
responsible for their own cash management, including the BITERRS AT BEKR
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising SRMERHREREBRERIA
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to FEMTEHRIR & Fsk - HEMEE R
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings BIBRETE 26 THREKTRE -
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The BARERARESTE 2K o K
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and NRIZBER AT HRERIRR R TE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HiZ REMEESK - URERE R
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines TR HESRE EE S ik
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its BRANAEEERE - ED
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. Note HEHRRBREIEF K - M:E
1(b) explains management’s plans for managing liquidity (b EREAEBREEST
needs of the Group to enable it to continue to meet its Sk EREE  BHENES
obligations as they fall due. BEREEERE -
The following table details the remaining contractual TRINBAEEZETESRE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s BREEB 2B TELHRF
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on 1§ - EREREGARTBRR SR
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (BEBEAOTE 2R s
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, FERERBENGEER - 5T E
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the FMEXH)RAEEZREZTEE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: Az BHETHE -

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARRRERY
Morethan  More than Morethan  More than
Within 1year 2 years Carrying Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
fyearor  butwithin  butwithin  More than amount at Tyearor  butwithin ~ butwithin -~ More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
-FRy BB-F BERE o BE-F BEmE
RBEE  ERFR  BEFA  BBIF # S EmEA  ERFR  BERF 2
§000 $000 §'000 §000 §000 $000 §000 §000
F T T el ] T T hv T
Bank loans RIER 104,697 104,016 538,437 453210 1,200,360 980,433 114,281 111,120 43797 698666 1362034 1,076,627
Convertile bonds RES - - - - - - 54,000 - - - 54,000 49531
Other payables and accruals — £RERFERGTRER 49741 - - - 49,741 49,741 47387 - - - 47387 47387
Amounts due to related parties fE BB 7 70R o 259,089 o o 259,089 259,089 = 228,6% = - 218,6% 228,6%

154438 363,105 538,437 453210 1,509,190 1,289,263 215,668 339816 437967 698,666 1,692,117 1,402,241

Note: Further details regarding maturity term of the bank loans Mizk - BRARITE K2 B HREA &
and the material uncertainties in respect of the Group's ERAERBELEEBZ
ability to continue as a going concern are set out in note BENCERTHBEEZES
1(b). G - SRR () ©
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 22

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank borrowings. The Group’s bank borrowings at 31
December 2016 were issued at variable rates and fixed
rates and therefore expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

MBERERERDAMBEE)

(0 F=mE
AEBZMEERERKERIT
B8 - AREER T —RFt+=
A=+—RBZRITEERZHH
KREEMEETR - AfMSARE
EEER RN EER - AEE
Z AR BB IR B R S
RTIXXEE()A °

(i) FIRHR

Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
- Gk +8 ERFx £%
$'000 $'000
i 1
Net fixed rate borrowings: EEEE !
Convertible bonds TERES - - 9.3% (49,531)
Net variable rate BE(BE)/BRFE.
(borrowings)/deposits:
Cash at bank RIRE 0.1% - 0.3% 22,235  0.01%-0.30% 52,703
Bank loans RITER 4.61% - 4.90% (980,433)  5.15% -5.90% (1,076,627)
___________________ Gsre) (10354
Total net borrowings EEzEeE (958,198) (1,073,455)
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZ T3/~
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SHEZAERIN)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2015:
100 basis points) in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group's loss for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately $9,253,000 (2015: $9,826,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2015.

(d) Currency risk

0}

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of storage and transshipment
income that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant. As such, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

(0 FEmEBE)

(ii)

BRBEDW
RZ—ZZTE—XNF+ A
=t+—H8 EmEHEMA
“Ml%%h?“%%ﬂ

CEETE R RS B
TF&—E%&%(:%—}E
F:—aETF) BoORIE
m/ R AEEZ FAE
8 & 25T E18 479,253,000
TT(ZZF—HR4F : 9,826,000
JT) °

A b B 8RE D AT IR R A
REPENEEBREM
BE  YEERARMNZ
BFrESRAEITESR
TEZMERER - —BA#H
FHEINSOR 1EEEE Y
BEET-—EFEZAERH
AR aBES 2
- ZAMEE-F
—hFRE EEET -

(d) E¥ER

0]

HNER 5
$El$%m#ﬁﬁ B
FEREERAZER
HZEREEB )
BT EE M ARE
Ek - BREERRZ
mErZaFEIT(ET]) -
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

125 EERERAT

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date.

22

Trade and other receivables B 5 K E At e GRIE
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSEER
Overall exposure to currency risk 282 &5 ¥ [ [

VAN

MBERERERDAMBEE)

(d) E¥mERGE)

(i)

(iii)

ERAEEREE
ERNNBRAEBZINER
AN 2 A 2 KA
B 5 RUWIRR TR - K
SEeEHREHN T
s AREEXRE AR
BHME  BRFZEHR
FrE—{ERZZHKFE -

AEBZHAEEEHNIE
BERZERBZNEER
FHE - At - EEEL A
BEHRAKEEZEES®ER
ERMEAZERERER

ARBNEERER

TRIMAKREREER
HHEANEHERNES
BN 2 BB 2 B
REEHSREMEEZE
BERBRFEE - BIE25Z
A RREREEEZE
KEBBBILIIR »

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—RHF
United States United States
I]|ETH Dollars

EH ETT

$'000 $'000

Fx 7T

947 6,827

1,961 2,565

2,908 9,392
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015, except for the amounts due to
related parties which are unsecured, interest-free and with
no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it is not

meaningful to disclose their fair values.

23 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of certain properties, which fall

due as follows:

22 BIKEREERAAREBEE)

(e) ARE
FrEsm T Az ABRE&FEHEER
TE-RERZE—RFTZ
A=+—HBzZArBELREEART
B - EIEH - 2B REETEN
HA 7 FEAST AR 5 5B AN - AR
ZEGRT  BEESEAAET
EEE o

23 EEHEERH
() FEEEREEA
REER - NEERET A HEE
ZETHERREHEBRIN 2R
REEHEEAEZZMALT

Within one year —FRQ
After one year but within five years ~ —%1&EBRFRA
After five years hFE

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 10 years
with fixed rentals. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

(b) The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities

under operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year
was approximately $216 million (2015: $218 million).
The leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 13
years (2015: 1 to 15 years). None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.
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5,244 2,689
7,109 765
128 325
12,481 3,779

BTSRRI —E+F2FH
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A M RT 1 R ©
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B216ET(ZFE—R4E : 2.18
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23

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) The Group as lessor (continued)
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as
follows:

23

REHERHE)

(b) FAEEERHBEAE)
AEEBRBEIARHEKEHE
e 2 RREBFES ERE T

Within one year —FR
After one year but within five years ~ —fF&{BRHFNR
After five years %

24 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

25

127 E28RERAT

At 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $17 million (2015: $18 million).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided
in the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately $131 million (2015: $140 million).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the

definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

VAN

24

25

28,864 58,459
19,899 34,735
31,174 41,349
79,937 134,543
BAEYE
R-ZB—RE+-A=+—8 ' K&

E RIS KEE SO METFRE
MERETOERRIEREREBEHEZ
BEARBYA/A0I7TEL(ZE—H
& 0.18185T) °

RZE—ARFE+_A=+—8 &
EERELEE SO M TR
MEHRFTOEEEE S AR KR
VEHRERBEZEARAIARNA
131BIL(ZZF—HRF : 1.40187L) °

MBI 2EARS
BRTAMBHRESERBENR S R
B ARBERBEBODANTEAR
Z

TEEEEAEMS
EEREAEMES XN ARRE
EZER(RHE7RE) -

EABAEE T X5 A K LR RIS
VUAZHERER HRIFEWEZHH)
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Convertible bonds

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liability

Non-current liability
Amount due to a related party

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE

SEI= NI
RBEE

T 5 3R0R Je LAt FE WK IR
ReFReFERE
REAE

Hi 7R MR ER
ARRE S

REBAE

REERRBRE
FRBEE
&+ — % R 73 50R
BEFE

BARK A
[LEN
G

B £

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 March 2017.

Yang Dong
S
Directors

EFE
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26

R-E—XE+-HA=+—HHAF

EEHEERER

600,482 618,747
356 56

61 860

417 916
2,297 2,305

= 49,531

2,297 51,836
(1,880) (50,920)
598,602 567,827
68,000 30,000
530,602 537,827
373,264 373,264
157,338 164,563
530,602 537,827

RZE—tF=A=-+N\BEEEE

et R IRAE T3

Zhang Lei
RE
Directors

EZE



Notes to the Financial Statements
Ey s B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BEZEHERIN)

27

28

129 E28RERAT

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 27
At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 28
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant

to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7,
Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
taxes: Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts

with customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based

payment: Classification and measurement

of share-based payment transactions

HKFRS 16, Leases

VAN

BEERBERERA

R_E—XRE+-_A=+—0 " &
ERAAEBNEEE AR K&K
¥R 7 AVand Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited * HR KB
SFEMKY - L EETSHEEMBER
FRUAMARIEE o

CEAEREBE-Z2—~E+=A
=+ —BIEFEERERBZIERT ~ #
ATEAIRREARER 2ZE
BEAPBHRKE  BESHMLE
BB E TRIERT —RFHEA -
BREBE_ZT—R"F+-A=1+—H
IEEFE R ARERR - TRARERAN AR
MK - ZFRREEASERE 2 E
7] REREETERMT -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
RT3 BHR &
ke LN

(BEGER) B75% 1 January 2017
[Bem#Ex] - #ETE —T—+tF—-A—H

CEBGFTER) 12598
FT1EF  BER BB R
BT EE

1 January 2017
—T—+F—-H—H

(BRMBREEL) Fo5%
A TA

1 January 2018
—T-\¥—A—H

(BEMBREEN) 155
EEEFEREIKA

1 January 2018
—ZT—\§—H—H

(BRMBREEL) F2REFTA
PABR D AR 2 ST
BERTEURG BERZKS

1 January 2018
—T-\¥—A—H

(BRMBREEA) F16%  HE

N

1 January 2019
—Z-h&—A—H
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value
of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 28 ERAERBE—ZE—XRF+=AH

131 Z2&RARAT

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
income statement over the period of the lease. As disclosed in
note 23(a), at 31 December 2016 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $12,481,000 for certain properties, the majority of which is
payable either within one year or between 1 and 5 years after
the reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before
its effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption
of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the
adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16
will be adopted before the effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1
January 2018.
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ERMEREEAFE165 - HE(E)
MRS ENE1RGEBTE
REBIEAMB LA ALY GRE
DEACERE)NSHEELE -
TEERF RS EHEERE
BB AT - R ERHBRRIE
SR IERF SRR o BankiEE23(a)
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Five Year Financial Summary

L FEHBEBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LATTIR)

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-H=1t—HILEE

RESULTS ¥i5
Revenue ILON 204,019 220,421 211,506 223,203 222,347
Loss before taxation B EE (124,608) (115,444) (115,491) (97,531) (71,609)
Income tax PiSH 573 584 125 (2,742) (7,699)
Loss attributable to equity PA/NGT )

shareholders of FE(RETE

the Company (116,713) (108,061) (108,814) (94,469) (75,611)
Loss attributable to JEIERR AR RS

non-controlling interests FE(EEE (7,322) (6,799) (6,552) (5,804) (3,697)
Loss for the year FRERE (124,035) (114,860) (115,366) (100,273) (79,308)

At 31 December
R+=—A=t+—H
2012

$'000
T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZERAR

Total assets BERH 1,907,379 1,831,548 1,710,331 1,495,723 1,287,283
Total liabilities B EE5 1,486,866 1,511,831 1,507,552 1,409,944 1,293,782
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 40,096 34,441 27,744 20,564 15,729
Total (deficit)/equity NG E

attributable to equity B(Eat) fEw

shareholders of the

Company 380,417 285,276 175,035 65,215 (22,228)
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